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Ch2: Definitions (Stages 2 and 3) (PHC) 29.10.15 

  [4.04 pm] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  I think we have this tier of all submitters, those in the 

back row are not – are you from the Health Board, again? 

 5 

MS …………:   Yes, sir, I am here from the CDHB. 

 

SJH:   And what definitions are you concerned with? 

 

MS …………:   Just health care facilities. 10 

 

SJH:   All right.  Thank you.  Well we have got a list of all parties here, then.  I 

am sorry, the gentleman in the back row, are you - - - 

 

MR HUNTER:   Sorry, sir, my name is Matt Hunter, I am the manager of The 15 

Naval Point Club at Lyttelton.  I am just here to ensure that - - - 

 

SJH:   Of what? 

 

MR HUNTER:   The manager of Navel Point Club, Lyttelton. 20 

 

SJH:   Oh, okay.  You had someone here earlier in the day? 

 

MR HUNTER:   That is correct, just here to observe, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   You are just here observing.  Thank you.  We better check the one 

behind you, please. 

 

  [4.05 pm] 

 30 

MR GULLERY:   Dean Gullery, Pratt & Whitney, Christchurch Engine 

Centre. 

 

SJH:   I see, all right, so again just an observer.  All right, Ms Scott. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Good afternoon, sir, I have no amendments to make to the 

statement of issues.  I have spoken to counsel both the Crown and for 

Ms Appleyard in respect of her clients, the Crown has some additional 

definitions to add in light of the definitions that have been added over 

the last couple of days. 40 

 

 In respect of paragraph 16 these are three definitions that relate to the 

Coastal Environment Chapter and whilst submissions on the chapter 

was specifically extended, submissions on those three definitions were 

not.  I can advise that no submissions were made during the extended 45 

period on marine structures and on recreation facilities.  One 
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submission was made on passive recreation activities, that is submitter 

3469.2 and that is the Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust and the 

Council were not opposed that submission point being accepted. 

 

SJH:   All right, well we will accept that submission points, thank you. 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   There is no scope issues on this one?  There is one. 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   There is one, sir, and it is the submission by Mr Lawry regarding 

airport purposes.  Paragraph 15 of my memorandum refers to the 

minute that was issued by the Hearings Panel in September and counsel 

considers that that issue has already been covered through that minute. 

 15 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Ms Silcock this time, sir. 

 

SJH:   Other counsel can – sorry, Ms Silcock. 20 

 

MS SILCOCK:   Sorry, sir, nothing further to add. 

 

SJH:   Other counsel, anything to add? 

 25 

MS …………:   Only in relation to Mr Lawry.  I would support the Council’s 

memorandum that speaks to Mr Lawry’s submission. I suspect that 

what the Panel is going to do is direct Mr Lawry to find some 

submissions as to why he considers (INDISTINCT 3.59) and we 

would also like the opportunity to respond to that. 30 

 

 The only place the airport purposes is first in the plan is in relation to 

the designation matter which has been decided, Mr Lawry’s submission 

on that has been rejected and it is beyond appeal. 

 35 

SJH   All right, thank you.  Anyone else from counsel?  All right, Mr Lawry, 

you have heard what has been said on handover to Judge Hassan in 

relation to this, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Lawry, one of the things that you may want to think 40 

about is in terms of the fact that a definition has to have a purpose 

within a plan.  Now, so where there may be cases which refer to say the 

concept of airport purposes somewhere in Auckland, for instance, they 

will relate to the thing that they were dealing with and I suspect in that 

case a designation so what is your position on the purpose of this 45 

definition?  Have you thought about that? 
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MR LAWRY:   Have you received my submission on this matter, sir? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 5 

MR LAWRY:   So my debate would be that I signalled very early that this 

definition had to be sorted out before the other hearings.  It was in my 

view the scheduling is the process here the problem.  I can’t quite see 

how we have managed to progress on the designation issues when there 

is a definition that has not been addressed and it was actually raised in 10 

my very first submission in October specifically saying “This definition 

needs to be confirmed prior to any further designations being 

addressed”.  So just my view would be - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   No, you haven’t quite understood me, I am sorry if I may 15 

- - - 

 

MR LAWRY:   Sorry, if I am - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just a little bit there - so the determination was made in 20 

regards to scope on the matter of the submission you sought to make on 

the designation and that has been made. 

 

  [4.10 pm] 

 25 

MR LAWRY:   Yes, and I accept that, yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And the definition may or may not have a place within a 

designation in a plan, for instance there might be in some cases 

definitions of terms in designations, but you do have a live submission 30 

on the designation issue.  So it comes back to my question, given that 

you do not have a live submission on the designation issue, in other 

words the designation, its substance, its content, what it will provide for 

and what it will not are all matters that we determine in the absence of 

your submission.  So bearing that in mind, is there a purpose other than 35 

the designation that this definition relates to? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Other activities in (INDISTINCT 0.46) so you have got 

designation issues and (INDISTINCT 0.56) which the issue is there is 

no definition and the point I pointed out is that - - -  40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But the definition has to relate to a provision in the plan, 

does it not? 

 

MR LAWRY:   Maybe I should put it this way, is it accepted the scheduling 45 

has disadvantaged me in that debate? 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   A definition by itself you see is not a plan provision, a 

definition may relate to a plan provision but you do not have a 

submission in regard to any plan provision do you, just a question 

about a definition, which at the moment seems like an orphan definition 5 

that doesn’t relate to any plan provision. 

 

MR LAWRY:   There is no more I can add, you make your decision, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Hands off Hagley, you have seen the Statement of Issues 10 

and such like, does that cover everything off? 

 

MS DINGWALL:   We expect that any expert who is speaking for us on 

another Chapter will cover this Chapter. 

 15 

SJH:   All right, thank you. Horticulture New Zealand and Regional Council 

are content with the Statement of Issues as framed? 

 

MS WHARFE:   Sir, I have raised an issue with Ms Scott, regarding a 

definition sought by Orion in regard to application of minor upgrading 20 

that you included as a result of the Natural Hazards hearing, and I am 

not quite sure how and when that submission is going to be dealt with. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I discussed this with Ms Scott, she can probably address 

it. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, this is a submission point by Orion, my friend, 

Ms Appleyard has confirmed that Orion is not seeking to amend the 

definition in the Natural Hazards decision, but that submission seeks to 

include that definition in the rest of the plan and actually amend the 30 

definition as well, so the definition would be minor upgrading. 

 

SJH:   In this hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   So the defined term would be minor upgrading. 35 

 

SJH:   But it is for determination in this hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and we have discussed so that it is appropriate allocated to 

a chapter as well, that it be allocated to the General Rules hearing. 40 

 

SJH:   Right, so it is the General Rules hearing?  I think I got a double answer 

there but it is not on this hearing, it is in the General Rules hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, it is a definition sought to be added so it is understood. 45 
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SJH:   I understood that any dispute about it will be determined within the 

General Rules hearing. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 5 

MS APPLEYARD:   There was one other definition which I raised with my 

friend, which I think might actually be a typo, one of the submitters 

Pacific Park Investments Limited had sought a definition of the sale of 

alcohol, a late night sale of alcohol and the schedule has actually put 

what they want for the definition rather than the phrase we are wanting 10 

defined into it, so that needs to be amended as well, and that would sit 

in the Central City Chapter. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  And the Regional Council? 

 15 

MS DOOGUE:   Sir, the Regional Council is satisfied with the Statement of 

Issues and the scope. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, all right then, well mediation 15 February, and again if you 

represent someone you need the authority to bind them, the red line 20 

version of the Proposal, 08 February, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   The Council’s evidence by 24 February, the submitter evidence by 25 

03 March, rebuttal evidence by 10 March.  Now we better just run 

through and check what witnesses people will be calling. You have 

already indicated, Ms Scott, in yours. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, there is a long list there, the intention is that evidence filed 30 

in the respect of Chapter - - -  

 

  [4.15 pm] 

 

SJH:   That paragraph 9 - - - 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   - - - evidence filed in the respective chapters be relied on.  They 

are listed for the avoidance (ph 0.12) of doubt, they are all planners.  

There is no intention to have any technical evidence filed in this 

hearing. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr Carranceja - oh sorry, Ms Silcock. 

 

MS SILCOCK:   Sir, the Crown will be calling a planner and any technical 

evidence as required but as with Ms Scott the Crown will be addressing 45 

all of the definitions as part of the substantive hearings. 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Appleyard? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   A similar position, obviously subject to the resolution of 

Mr Lawry’s issue because if we have to call evidence on what airport 5 

purposes are, we are going to need a separate hearing for that I suspect. 

 

SJH:   Ms Walsh? 

 

MS WALSH:  Sir, none of the clients I represent intend to call any evidence 10 

given that it will be addressed in the respective hearings. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms MacLean? 

 

MS MACLEAN:   Sir, we take the same position and in the event that it falls 15 

outside of the definitions we would be likely to call planning evidence 

of all three parties that we represent. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Wharfe? 

 20 

MS WHARFE:   Horticulture New Zealand would only call - - - 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, just use the microphone if you wouldn’t mind. 

 

MS WHARFE:   Horticulture New Zealand would only call planning evidence. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Regional Council propose to call any evidence? 

 

MS DOOGUE:   The Regional Council may call planning evidence and maybe 

a technical expert in relation to indigenous vegetation. 30 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Hands Off Hagley, you advised earlier you are 

going to rely on the experts you are calling in other chapters? 

 

MS DINGWALL:   That is correct, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr Lawry, are you proposing to call evidence? 

 

MR LAWRY:   If I am allowed to. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well Mr Lawry, just to explain the context of that, so you 

have invited me before to make a determination but the more 

appropriate course is as we have indicated before with the scope issues, 

is for you to be given time, ie the normal time provided by directions to 

follow, for you to advise us on how you consider the definition is 45 

within scope, but you need to understand that it would be on the 



 Page 7 

  

Ch2: Definitions (Stages 2 and 3) (PHC) 29.10.15 

proviso that you don’t have a live submission on the designation and 

the document you have lodged does not disclose, other than refer in 

broad terms to your originating submission to a basis for that scope.   

 

 But you will be given the opportunity to expand on that, to explain why 5 

you consider you do have scope for that definition of issue to be 

considered.  Did you want to add to the memo? 

 

MR LAWRY:   If you are going to give me time to do that I will seek advice 

and do that, sir, thank you. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right but just bear in mind that you will need to 

explain how your originating submission gives that scope and what 

provisions this definition relates to other than the designation, on which 

you do not have scope. 15 

 

MR LAWRY:   Sir, I totally understand you, but my point is that had the 

definition issue been raised before - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, yes you can deal with the points in your 20 

memorandum that you want to lodge, that is the best time to deal with 

that, given that that determination would follow that, rather than try to 

persuade me now on the basis of what is in front of us. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you, sir. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So, on that basis and on the basis that the Council would 

have a right to respond to that in the usual way, Ms Appleyard, would 

you be seeking a right to respond to it? 

 30 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, I would like to lodge a response on it, yes, sir as 

well.  I haven’t seen the previous memorandum, maybe I have just 

missed it. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, on that basis that a direction will be made 35 

following the consideration of those further submissions, you could 

now address Mr Chairman’s question on your evidence. 

 

MR LAWRY:   I would be intending to give evidence myself. 

 40 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MR LAWRY:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   The application for leave to cross-examine by 15 March.  The defaults 45 

limitation is 10 minutes.  If people require longer they may apply for 
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that in the leave application. Evidence will be pre-circulated as 

(INDISTINCT 3.59) by website, it must be lodged by 3.00 pm on the 

due date but the onus of service remains on submitters and parties. 

 

 If you wish to file late documents, along with the documents you must 5 

file an application for leave giving reasons for lateness.  The evidence, 

as with all other matters, will be pre-read.  There will be a highlights 

package expected of lay and expert witnesses, limited to 10 minutes.  If 

any party feels disadvantaged by that and seeks longer they can apply 

for a longer period setting out reasons and as we have already 10 

foreshadowed in other hearings, the expert witnesses need not be 

repeated, it can be simply cross referenced. 

 

 Legal submissions, brief legal openings, you can address them in 

person or you can file them in writing.  If you are going to address us in 15 

person the secretariat needs three working days’ notice.  If the 

submissions are longer than three days, either opening or closing, they 

should have a contents page.  Again, closing submissions, which are 

more fulsome, we grant leave to file those in writing to any party who 

wants to avail themselves of that leave. 20 

 

  [4.20 pm] 

 

 If they wish to present in person, you are at liberty to do so.  We will 

timetable that on the day of the hearing.  The hearing date is one day on 25 

22 March. 

 

 Mr Ball, can I ask you, it may be difficult, but would you try to assist 

Mr Lawry in understanding the position he finds himself in and the 

limitations around – I cannot go further because I am disqualified, but 30 

as the Judge outlined it may be helpful if you try to define that for him 

and assist him. 

 

 Ms Scott? 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, one minor matter just in my magic calendar – 8 February, 

which is the date for the Council revised proposal, which I suggested is 

Waitangi Day, and I wonder if we could schedule that for the 9th? 

 

SJH:   We will make it the 9th, thank you. 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  That is all. 

 

SJH:   I am sure the Secretariat were intending to be here to receive it though.  

Any other counsel have any matters?  Yes? 45 
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MS MURRAY:   The CDHB may call a witness if our matters are not resolved 

in the other chapters, or if - - - 

 

SJH:   What sort of a witness? 

 5 

MS MURRAY:  Sorry, we may call a planner to do with the healthcare 

definition. 

 

SJH:   All right, well the message we conveyed earlier did not seem to get 

through to your colleagues today.  You really need to be represented 10 

given the size of your organisation so we get proper assistance from the 

Health Board, not what we have received to date.  Can you take that 

back to your senior executives? 

 

MS MURRAY:   Yes, sir.   15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Do other submitters wish to raise anything, Mr Lawry?  

Hands Off Hagley?  Ms Wharfe?  The Regional Council? 

 

MS WELLS:   Yes, thank you.  Sue Wells, I am here on behalf of Phantom Bill 20 

Stickers.  Just wishing to signal that we will be present in speaking to 

the definition section.  The definitions as expressed in the issues we 

believe offer us sufficient scope, there is some questions around the 

built-form standards which remain ambiguous at the moment, but I 

hope that we will be able to raise them then.  Thank you, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   All right, well there is the opportunity at mediation, but you can also 

informally mediate with the Council, which is something I am sure you 

are well familiar with.   

 30 

MS WELLS:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   Yes.  Do you propose to call evidence or simply submit at the hearing? 

 

MS WELLS:   Simply submit, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Anybody else with anything?  All right, thank you.  

We will adjourn until we start hearings next week. 

 

ADJOURNED  [4.23 pm] 40 


